
 

Page 1 of 3 

Notice of Meeting  
 

Cabinet Member for Highways, 
Transport and Flooding Decisions  

 

Date & time Place Contact Chief Executive  
Tuesday, 7 July 
2015 at 1.00 pm 

G44 - County Hall 
Kingston upon 
Thames, KT1 2DN 

Anne Gowing or Andrew 
Baird 
Room 122, County Hall 
Tel 020 8541 9938 or 020 
85417609 
anne.gowing@surreycc.gov.uk 
andrew.baird@surreycc.gov.uk 

 
 

David McNulty 
 

 

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in 
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please 
either call 020 8541 9122, write to Democratic Services, Room 122, 
County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 
2DN, Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or email 
anne.gowing@surreycc.gov.uk. 
 

This meeting will be held in public.  If you would like to attend and you 
have any special requirements, please contact Anne Gowing or 
Andrew Baird on 020 8541 9938 or 020 85417609. 

 

 
Elected Members 

Mr John Furey 
 

mailto:anne.gowing@surreycc.gov.uk


 
Page 2 of 3 

AGENDA 
 

1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests from 
Members in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting. 
 

 

2  PROCEDURAL ITEMS 
 
 

 

2a  Members' Questions 
 
The deadline for Members’ questions is 12pm four working days before 
the meeting (1 July 2015). 
 

 

2b  Public Questions 
 
The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (30 
June 2015). 
 

 

2c  Petitions 
 
The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no 
petitions have been received. 
 

 

3  MINOR CHANGE TO POLICY OF ADOPTION OF ROADS AS 
HIGHWAYS MAINTAINABLE AT PUBLIC EXPENSE 
 
This report proposes changing the policy introduced in September 2014 
for the adoption of roads and streets as highways maintainable at public 
expense. It recommends that revised criteria for those roads that are 
adopted be introduced from 1 August 2015. The revised criteria allows 
only the adoption of roads that serve the equivalent of six or more 
residential curtilages or that are of a wider public utility. This takes account 
of the fact that Surrey County Council (SCC) will not now be the 
Sustainable Drainage Approval Body (SAB) as was envisaged at the time 
of the September 2014 decision. 
 
 

(Pages 1 
- 6) 

 
 

David McNulty 
Chief Executive 

Published: 26 June 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 3 of 3 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 
 

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile 
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of 
the meeting. To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at reception 
for details. 
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings. Please liaise with 
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending 
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to 
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, 
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be 
switched off in these circumstances. 
 
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined 
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions 
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems. 
 

Thank you for your co-operation 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAYS, TRANSPORT AND 
FLOODING  

DATE: 7 JULY 2015 

LEAD 
OFFICER: 

MR TREVOR PUGH, STRATEGIC DIRECTOR ENVIRONMENT 
AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

SUBJECT: MINOR CHANGE TO POLICY OF ADOPTION OF ROADS AS 
HIGHWAYS MAINTAINABLE AT PUBLIC EXPENSE 

 

SUMMARY OF ISSUE: 

 
This report proposes changing the policy introduced in September 2014 for the 
adoption of roads and streets as highways maintainable at public expense. It 
recommends that revised criteria for those roads that are adopted be introduced from 
1 August 2015. The revised criteria allows only the adoption of roads that serve the 
equivalent of six or more residential curtilages or that are of a wider public utility. This 
takes account of the fact that Surrey County Council (SCC) will not now be the 
Sustainable Drainage Approval Body (SAB) as was envisaged at the time of the 
September 2014 decision. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and Flooding 
authorise the minor change to the policy of adoption of roads as highways 
maintainable at public expense as set out in Part B of Annex 1.  
 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
One of the reasons for introducing the new policy on adopting roads was to prepare 
for the County’s then intended role as the SAB. Had this role been introduced, SCC 
would have been responsible for adopting and maintaining networks of drainage 
systems.  As this role has not now passed to SCC, there is no need to adopt the 
more minor areas of public and private realm.   
 

DETAILS: 

1. On 23 September 2014 Cabinet approved a policy for adopting roads and streets 
as highways maintainable at Public Expense. This is set out in Part A of Annex 1. 

2. Since the introduction of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010, there have 
been discussions amongst the various stakeholders about the implementation of 
Schedule 3 of that Act, which in recent years has included the establishment of a 
SAB within each Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA). However, on 18 December 
2014, Government announced that Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) will be 
delivered for all major developments through the planning system as of 6 April 
2015. SABS were not therefore going to be set up. 

Page 1

Item 3



3. As part of this change, the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 has been amended making SCC 
in its capacity as  the LLFA, a statutory consultee on surface water management 
drainage issues for all new major developments. Those changes came into effect 
on 15 April 2015. 

4. One of the reasons for introducing the policy was to prepare for SCC’s then 
intended role as the SAB. Had this role been imposed upon the County as the 
LLFA, there would have been a requirement to adopt and maintain drainage 
systems in a much broader range of new developments than previously required.   

5. As SCC will not now be the SAB, there is no need to adopt more minor areas 
such as parking courts for drainage purposes. As there is otherwise no need to 
adopt these areas which serve no wider public utility, the policy needs to be 
changed to reflect this minor change. The revised policy wording is set out in Part 
B of Annex 1. 

CONSULTATION: 

6. The Principal Planning and Highways Solicitor and the Director of Environment 
and Infrastructure have both been consulted on this minor revision to the policy.   

RISK MANAGEMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

7. There are no assessed risks associated with the implementation of this minor 
revision. 

Financial and Value for Money Implications  

8. The Section 38 process is self-financing.   

Section 151 Officer Commentary  

9. Section 151Officer confirms that all material financial and business issues and 
risks have been considered in this report. The Section 38 policy remains self-
financing with SCC’s costs, both in terms of administration and future 
maintenance, being met by the developer for a reasonable period. 

 

Legal Implications – Monitoring Officer 

10. S38 of the Highways Act 1980 provides a power to highway authorities to enter 
into agreements with developers of land to maintain highways. They will, on 
adoption, become highways maintainable at the public expense. The County has 
an approved policy which addresses the relevant criteria whereby highway is 
judged suitable to be adopted by the highway authority. The Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010 anticipated the establishment of SABs within each LLFA 
(SCC in this case) to approve SuDS and subsequently adopt them. The change 
of mind by Government described in preceding parts of this report means that 
SuDS are no longer required to be adopted by SCC. It is therefore appropriate to 
remove this element from the policy. 

 

Page 2



    

Equalities and Diversity 

11. These are as set out in the 23 September 2014 Cabinet report and do not 
change as a result of this minor alteration. 

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT: 

 Implement the revised Highway Adoption of Roads and Streets Policy from 
1 August 2015 as set out in part B of Annex 1 to all new requests to enter 
into Section 38 Agreements.   
 

 Amend the appropriate web site page on Transport Development 
Planning’s section of the County Web site. 

 

 
Contact Officer: 
Michael Green, Transport Development Planning West Manager. Tel: 020 8541 9316 
 
Annexes: 
Annex 1 – Policy to be applied to requests for adoption of roads as highways 
maintainable at public expense – 1 August 2015 
 
 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



          Annex 1 

Policy to be applied to requests for adoption of roads as highways maintainable at 

public expense – 1 August 2015.    

PART A:    Existing Policy: 

Surrey County Council’s (SCC) natural presumption is to adopt residential roads, streets, 

footpaths, cycleways and margins if they are constructed to a satisfactory standard, connect 

to an existing public maintainable highway, if commuted sums are paid where appropriate to 

provide for ongoing maintenance and provided they meet either of the tests sets out below: 

Roads that: 

 Serve six or more residential curtilages   

 OR otherwise have wider public utility, including through serving as a Sustainable 

Drainage System * 

 

*this could include parking areas of accesses to private areas if they serve as a Sustainable 

Drainage System. 

 

Note: 

 

1)  Adoption will not proceed until full payment of all reasonable administration costs and 

commuted sums (as required under SCC’s Commuted Sum Policy) 

 

PART B:   Policy to be applied from 1 August 2015: 

SCC’s approach is to adopt residential roads, streets, footpaths, cycleways and margins 

where they are constructed to a satisfactory standard, connect to an existing public 

maintainable highway,  commuted sums are paid where appropriate to provide for ongoing 

maintenance and provided they meet either of the tests set out below: 

Roads that: 

 Serve six or more residential curtilages or equivalent 

OR  

 otherwise have wider public utility 

 

Note: 

 

1)  Adoption will not proceed until full payment of all reasonable administration costs and 

commuted sums (as required under SCC’s Commuted Sum Policy) 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minor Change to Policy of Adoption of Roads as Highways Maintainable at Public Expense
	Section 38 7 July Cabinet Member Decision Annex 1


